
 
Upper Mount Bethel Township 

387 Ye Olde Highway 
P.O. Box 520 

Mount Bethel, PA  18343-5220 
Phone: (570) 897-6127 Fax: (570) 897-0108 

www.umbt.org 
                                                                                    
 

 
UPPER MOUNT BETHEL TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WS MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2025 – 7:00 PM 

 
*This meeting was held in person and live streamed through the Upper Mount Bethel 
Township Facebook page. 

I. 
Supervisor Bermingham called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

In attendance were Supervisor Bermingham, Supervisor Eckman, Supervisor Erler, 
Supervisor Friedman, Supervisor Albert, Township Manager Graziano, Township 
Solicitor Karasek, and Township Engineer Coyle. 

II. 
APPROVE THE AGENDA 

MOTION by Supervisor Friedman to approve the agenda, seconded by Supervisor 
Eckman. Vote: 5-0. 

III. 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Tara Mezzanotte stated she wanted to give an update on the Explore Act, which was 
passed into law in December. It focuses on identifying and mitigating visitor us impacts 
to local communities called Gateway Communities. Hopes are for this to become one of 
10 pilot programs for recreation and impacts Gateway Communities. Warren County 
has taken the lead. Tara read their “therefore be it resolved” because they will be 
drafting municipal versions of this Resolution.  
 
Charles Baltic, Laurel Hill Rd., submitted his public comment for the record. Charles’s 
public comment was primarily focused on the Plan Slate Belt Multi-Municipal Plan.  
 
Chris Finan, Apache Dr., Chief MBFD, wanted to address some residents’ concerns, 
specifically the fire department and how they respond. 911 gives them implied consent 
to enter the property. When there is no red flag warning, the fire department has no 



authority to make people put out controlled burns. The fire department has specific 
things they need to follow. The number one concern of the residents and people is 
safety, but everyone has to be treated the same. Supervisor Erler if this certain person 
has called John Bocko for permission to burn. Chris said he does not think so. Manager 
Graziano asked what if it is an illegal burn and he doesn’t call. He receives calls every 
day because of the burning. All the fire departments are aware of what exactly the 
circumstances are. If it’s an illegal burn, the number one safety is the people of this 
community. We all respect the fire departments. Chris stated the Township has failed 
the people. The Township was told that the Township needs a Fire Marshall to enforce 
fire laws. 
 
Katie O’Brien, Orchard Rd., commented on the burning that is happening right next door 
to her. She is frustrated. Her children cannot go outside and play because of the smoke. 
This has been going on way too long. The smell is horrible. She wants it to stop. 
Solicitor Karasek stated that she has the right to file her own claim against the neighbor. 
 
Thomas O’Brien, Katie’s son, stated that the person that is always burning is obnoxious 
and annoying and he cannot go outside without breathing smoke. His little brother 
needs to go outside and play. 
 
Patrick McHugh, Quaker Plain Rd., commented on the Plan Slate Belt Multi-Municipal 
Plan and would like the Board to reconsider the involvement of the plan. He sees no 
guarantee of benefits for UMBT. There are legal implications. Do we have good 
relationships with our neighboring communities now. 
 
Ron Angle, Million Dollar Hwy., commented on the Plan Slate and legal ramifications. 
Ron commented on the Park Foundation that is to be discussed later in the meeting. As 
a citizen and taxpayer of the Township, he should be able to demand to see the records 
of the Foundation and would like to see the records of the Foundation. 
 
Russell Horn, Centerville Dr., commented on his opposition to the Plan Slate Belt. 
Russell read an email from John Paul Goffredo, NC Council member, which stated that 
this plan will not fare well with the Township and the people who live here and hopes 
the Board votes it down. Russell would really like to see the Board reconsider this plan. 
 
Anthony Kyzer, Lenape Tr., commented on the garbage contract and would like to see 
something get fixed for the next one. Anthony shared some ideas to the Board. 
Manager Graziano stated that a town hall meeting will be scheduled to talk about trash 
service. 
 
Ray Higgins, Centerville Rd., asked the Board members if they had read the Plan Slate 
Belt plan. Supervisor Albert stated that he has. Supervisor Bermingham stated that he 
attended a bunch of meetings and asked questions, so he was well informed when he 
made his vote. Ray stated that the two people on the committee have violated ethics, 
the committee needs to be broadened. 



Robert Teel, N. Delaware Dr., Chairman of the Planning Commission. What is the 
advantage of this plan for the Planning Commission. He does not agree with it. 
 
Stavros Barbounis, Potomac St., commented on rumors that the Parks/Rec is corrupt 
and something about control over emails coming into the Township. This is wrong and 
inaccurate. Stavros explained how the emails work in the Township. 
 
Ron Angle, Million Dollar Hwy.,commented on an individual who opposed Portland 
Borough drilling another well in the Township, as well as setting up road blocks to 
obstruct business coming in to the Township. 
 
Sharon Duffield, Potomac St., commented on public comments, and being tired of 
listening to attacks made on individuals. 
 
IV. 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Animal Control Officer-Supervisor Bermingham stated this is on the agenda to 
see whether we want to bring an animal control officer into the Township. 
Solicitor Karasek stated that he sent an email with his comments regarding the 
proposed contract. Christine Mammi stated that comes into the Township when 
called by PA State Police. In January, she received nine (9) calls. Christine gave 
some examples of her current services that she has had to address in the 
Township. At this point, she cannot afford to keep coming out here for nothing. 
The cost for her service is $2 a resident. Supervisor Erler stated the last animal 
control officer we had charged $100 a call for the Township. The Township has 
not received any calls about dogs. MOTION by Supervisor Friedman to table, 
seconded by Supervisor Erler. Vote: 5-0. 

 
 
V. 
DISCUSSION 
Consultant-Paul Soult- Supervisor Bermingham stated that Paul was brought on by the 
Township for a potential business deal, of which the terms must remain confidential. 
Paul stated that he was asked to come assist with a potential large commercial project. 
Because of an NDA, there is a limited amount of information that can be discussed. He 
generally works as the liaison between the community and the development people. A 
community benefits agreement will come into play at some point.  
Paul stated that there is going to be value to the community in terms of employment, he 
just doesn’t know what that is yet. Some resident questions included if Paul has dealt 
with other companies of this size before, truck traffic, employment, if Paul has read the 
NID. Paul stated that he had not read the NID. 
Paul stated that this is a collaborative process initially and once everyone is comfortable 
with terms, it would then become a community process, a community presentation. 
Another resident question, in regards to a Text Amendment, once an agreement has 
been reached, does it bypass zoning/planning. Paul stated that it does not bypass 



zoning/planning. Charles Baltic asked about his duties and responsibilities. Paul stated 
that he is 100% for the Township, he does not represent the developer. Scott Cole 
asked about the contract for $5,000 with the consultant. Having the background that he 
has, how is the Township funding him moving forward. Supervisor Bermingham stated 
that he does not want to go into the details of that yet, it is all part of the negotiation 
process. Supervisor Friedman stated that an escrow fund will be set-up and 
professional services will come out of that. Ron Angle asked what Supervisor he’s been 
particularly in contact with the most. Paul stated Supervisor Bermingham and 
Supervisor Friedman, occasionally, other members of the Board, but not everyone. 
There was a discussion on the cost of Paul’s services. The amount cannot be 
determined until they know the scope of work. Ron discussed the Plan Slate Belt, which 
the Board voted on and approved, which may result in zoning changes. Supervisor 
Friedman stated that Ron is misinterpreting the Plan Slate Belt. Ron stated that he was 
a convicted violator of the ethics law. Supervisor Friedman stated that he (Ron) forges 
wills. Paul stated that he is not involved with zoning in any way, shape or form. There 
was a discussion on the possible benefits of a large, proposed business coming into the 
Township who want to have a good relationship with us. Ron stated that he would like to 
see all five supervisors involved in this situation. Charles Cole stated that he fully 
supports Paul in making decisions. Charlie stated that we need to work with neighboring 
communities. Judy Henckel commented on the Plan Slate Belt and the fear of not 
getting the project because of it. Judy stated that no one has any jurisdiction over our 
amendments. Judy asked Paul if he is at a basic level of finding out if we have the 
assets/capabilities for what can be built here, is our community the proper fit. Paul 
stated that this large company has been doing a very thorough due diligence, and if 
they haven’t walked away by now, they’re not walking away. Judy stated that she is still 
a little skeptical only because a lot of big companies that want to do this kind of project 
and there are people all over the county clamoring to get them. Some sights might be a 
little more adaptable, more ready to go, she’s just concerned. Ray Higgins asked about 
getting the EDC involved. Supervisor Bermingham stated that it is too early in the 
process. Supervisor Bermingham stated that they are going to form a community 
committee. A resident asked the Board if Paul was the only consultant that they spoke 
to. Supervisor Bermingham stated no, but Paul came highly recommended. Anthony 
DeFranco asked how we expedite this. Paul will report back when more details are 
available. 
 
Supervisor Bermingham called for a five-minute recess at 8:50 pm. 
The meeting reconvened at 9:00 pm. 
 
Supervisor Bermingham discussed tabling a few agenda items. 
 
IV. 
ACTION ITEMS 

1. Resolution No.2025-05 NJDOT, PennDOT, Amtrack Liaison-MOTION by 
Supervisor Bermingham to adopt Resolution No. 2025-05, seconded by 
Supervisor Albert. Vote: 5-0. 



2. Resolution No. 2025-06 Haddad/Heritage Conservancy-Solicitor Karasek stated 
the approximate sale price is $141,000, 50% paid by grant funding from the 
Heritage Conservancy and 50% will be paid out of the Open Space fund. 
MOTION by Supervisor Friedman to adopt Resolution No. 2025-06, seconded by 
Supervisor Erler. Vote: 5-0. 

3. Resolution No. 2025-07 Nordstrom/Heritage Conservancy-Solicitor Karasek 
stated the approximate sale price is $507,000, 50% paid by grant funding from 
the Heritage Conservancy and 50% will be paid out of the Open Space Fund. 
MOTION by Supervisor Friedman to adopt Resolution No. 2025-07, seconded by 
Supervisor Erler. Vote: 5-0. 

4. Inter-Municipal Agreement/Softball-Supervisor Bermingham stated this is done 
each year between Upper Mount Bethel and Lower Mount Bethel. MOTION by 
Supervisor Albert to accept the Inter-Municipal Agreement between UMBT and 
LMBT, seconded by Supervisor Eckman. Vote: 5-0. 

5. April Pinto Letter of Resignation from Parks/Rec-Supervisor Bermingham stated 
the Parks/Rec Board accepted April’s letter of resignation. The Board of 
Supervisors accepted her letter of resignation. The open seat will be posted on 
the Township’s website. 

6. EAC Reappointment-Supervisor Bermingham stated that Courtney Gilmour 
submitted her letter of interest to continue serving on the EAC. MOTION by 
Supervisor Friedman to reappoint Courtney Gilmour to continue serving on the 
EAC, seconded by Supervisor Albert. Vote: 5-0. 

7. Auditor Letter of Interest-Supervisor Bermingham stated that he received a letter 
of interest for the open Auditor’s seat. The Township Auditors’, Charles Baltic 
and Rod Rufe have recommended Leonardo Andrade Jr. to fill the open seat. 
MOTION by Supervisor Erler to appoint Leonardo Andrade Jr. to the Township 
Audit team, seconded by Supervisor Friedman. Vote: 5-0. 

 
VII. 
OLD BUSINESS 

1.  Plan Slate Belt Multi-Municipal Plan-MOTION by Supervisor Bermingham to 
table, seconded by Supervisor Friedman. Vote: 5-0. 

2.  Property Maintenance Officer-MOTION by Supervisor Bermingham to table, 
seconded by Supervisor Friedman. Vote: 5-0. 

 
VIII. 
NEW BUSINESS 

1.  Community Wide Yard Sale-MOTION by Supervisor Bermingham to table, 
seconded by Supervisor Friedman. Vote: 5-0. 

2.   PNRB Letter to BOS about Park Foundation-Supervisor Eckman stated that a 
letter was presented to the Parks/Rec Board to be voted on to present to the 
Board of Supervisors. Supervisor Eckman stated that she has seen the 
parks/rec board work tirelessly to raise funds to improve the park. This group of 
volunteers put together fantastic events that bring people to our park. The cost 
to put in a kitchen would cost thousands of dollars. There was money left in the 
Park Foundation intended to be left for parks/rec for future improvements to our 



park. Stavros Barbounis, Chairman of the Parks/Rec Board read the letter 
submitted to the Board requesting access to the Foundation’s financial records 
and any clearance documentation from the Attorney General’s office regarding 
this matter. Supervisor Bermingham stated that the Board will work with Solicitor 
Karasek and prepare a formal response. Supervisor Erler asked about this 
being reopened after the issue was closed, can it be reopened. Solicitor 
Karasek stated that if the Board wishes to revisit this matter, they can. 
Supervisor Bermingham stated that the Board should have a formal response 
by the end of March. Ron Angle stated that he would like to get all the records 
from the Park Foundation, for which he is entitled to. The Foundation needs to 
be accountable for whatever and all of any money. Supervisor Bermingham 
stated that he looked at the letter from the Attorney General and certain financial 
records. Ron said he would like to get a copy of the Attorney Generals letter. 
Supervisor Bermingham stated that he would get him a copy of it. Supervisor 
Bermingham asked Mark Mezger about the $8,000 that was in the Park 
Foundation’s account. Mark stated that the only reason the Township knows 
about the $8,000 is because the previous Township Manager stole their bank 
statement. Ed Nelson stated that the bylaws stated that he was entitled to open 
the mail. Mark discussed a letter from CPA firm in Florida that Solicitor Karasek 
had and never delivered it to the Foundation. Solicitor Karasek stated that 
information is completely incorrect. Solicitor Karasek stated that he received an 
inquiry letter from an accountant in Florida who was sending letters to 
everybody saying can do their work. Mark stated that at some point a complaint 
was filed with the Attorney General and he had to hire an attorney to deal with 
that complaint. The Foundation had to borrow money to pay for that attorney. 
The Foundation is currently in debt $30,000 because of that. The Foundation 
has no money. Supervisor Bermingham asked Mark if has receipts for that. 
Mark stated that he has everything and delivered it to the BOS on Sunday. He 
delivered a huge data package to you guys on Sunday. Mark stated that the 
Foundation has not received a single donation since 2023. Mark stated that 
since the NID didn’t want the Foundation there, they were going to expand their 
mission and work towards a bigger broader aspect of the community in terms of 
charitable initiatives and educational initiatives. Mark would like to develop a 
workforce training center, a national scale workforce in conjunction with the data 
centers that may be coming to this town. Stavros stated that he would like to 
know how the letter was released to the public prior to tonight's meeting. And 
why was it yesterday that additional information was sent to you. Supervisor 
Bermingham stated that he gave the letter to Mark. There was a discussion on 
how this item got put on the agenda. Stavros stated that it was a request from 
the Parks/Rec board. Supervisor Eckman stated that she was getting calls as to 
why this was on the agenda. Stavros stated that he is looking into starting his 
own 501c 3 to benefit the park. Ron Angle stated to Mark that he is requesting 
from him within the next 48 hours all of the records. Mark stated that it is a 
private corporation. Marty Pinter stated that in regards to the Park Foundation 
and that it was started with Township funds and would like to think the Board 
members would like to know how the money was spent from the beginning. 
Marty stated that he is deeply concerned that the Foundation has taken on 
$30,000 in debt. To be a 501(c) 3 all meeting minutes, votes, board meetings, 
etc. have to be accounted for.  



 
IX. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Recess to Executive Session at 9:50 pm to discuss legal matters. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10:06 pm.  
Solicitor Karasek stated that a possible litigation matter was discussed in Executive 
Session involving the Stine burning issue. MOTION by Supervisor Friedman to instruct 
Solicitor Karasek to go ahead with filing the injunction against Mr. Stine and the property 
owner for the burning issue, seconded by Supervisor Erler. Vote: 4-0-1. Supervisor 
Albert abstained. 
 
X. 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Supervisor Erler stated that he would like the announcements to be moved to the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
Supervisor Erler announced the Hands only CPR and Stop the Bleed class will be held 
on March 11th, at the Mt. Bethel FH 6pm-8pm. March 6th office hours will be at TKs 
starting at 7pm. Supervisor Erler announced that he will be running for the Supervisor 
open seat. 
 
Supervisor Bermingham announced there will be a regional meeting about ambulance 
coverage at the MBFH on March 20th. The Sportsman Banquet, hosted by the MBFH is 
March 22nd, tickets are $50 each. 
 
Manager Graziano stated that there has been some criminal mischief happening this 
morning with garbage toters from Slateford up to Turkey Ridge into Saddle Creek. If 
anyone has information, please contact Manager Graziano at the Township Building. 
 
X. 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Supervisor Friedman to adjourn the meeting at 10:10 pm, seconded by 
Supervisor Eckman. Vote: 5-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted by Cindy Beck-Recording Secretary 














	2-24-2025 Approved Board of Supervisor WS Meeting Minutes
	Charles Baltic PC 2-24-2025

